
Please call office at 651-560-2053 or email susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com if you 
have any questions on attending physically or by phone. 
We have call-in capabilities for up to 10 people. Phone# 651-560-1088 Access code # 0147478#.  

 
Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District  

District Regular Board Meeting  
September 22, 2022 

8:15 a.m.  
County Conference Room 

625 Jefferson Ave. 
 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER  
  

II. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

III. AGENDA 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS   
Comments limited to 5 minutes per speaker 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action 

A. Jacob Meyer Contract# 22-319WIC-1 in the amount of $6,000.00 for 340 Cover 
Crops. 50 acres for 3 years @ $40.00/acre/year 
(Funding Federal West Indian 319) 

B. Chad Schumacher Contract# 2022-WAGZ-WC-11 in the amount of $12,000.00 for 
340 Cover Crops.  100 acres for 3 years @ $40.00/acre/year  
(Funding WAGZ Watershed Based) 

VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT 
A. August 25, 2022 Meeting Minutes – Board Action 
 

VII. TREASURER’S REPORT – Board Action  
A. August District Financial Statements  
B. August Program Record 

    
VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS 

A. Monthly Bills in the amount of $24,568.61 - Board Action 
 

IX. DISTRICT REPORTS 
A. Chair Report – Lynn Zabel 
B. County Commissioner – Bob Walkes  
C. District Manager Report – Terri Peters   
D. NRCS Report – John Benjamin  
E. District Technician Report- Matt Kempinger (in packet) 
F. Natural Resources Conservation Technician Report – Henry Stelten (in packet) 
G. Bookkeeper/Administrative Assistant -Sue Cerwinske (in packet) 
H. BWSR Report – None 
I. Other agencies – None 

mailto:susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com


X. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Conservation Project – Lynn (open to any Supervisor for ideas) 
B. MASWCD Annual Convention - Resolutions – Board Discussion 

   
XI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Approve BWSR Academy Attendance and Payment for Oct 25th -Oct 27th 
Terri, Matt and Henry class registration - $165.00 each for the three days = $495.00, 
check#11679.  Hotel $261.60 each for the 3 nights ($784.80) this will be charged to 
credit card upon check-out- Board Action 

B. Approve Klavetter Family Farm Amendment #1 for Contract# 22-Capacity-2, to 
change authorized amount to $5,250.28 from original amount of $12,835.96 – 
Board Action/Signature 
(Funding sources change to FY21 Capacity $2,897.51 and FY22 Capacity $2,352.77) 
(Change is for decreasing cost share amount to reflect newly approved EQIP funding 
for the project) 

C. Approve Roller-Crimper Storage Space Lease and the Roller-Crimper Rental 
Agreement – Board Discussion/Action 

D. Approve check to Dennis Shea for Storage Space Lease for Aug- Dec. of 2021 $62.50 
and Jan – Dec. of 2022 $150.00 for a total of $212.50 check# 11680. - Board Action 
(2023 Lease payment of $150.00 will be paid January 2023) 

E. Approve Sharon Schumacher Contract# 21-SWD-2 in the amount of $445.00 for 
Reverse Osmosis Water Treatment System & Installation – Board Action 

(Funding FY21 Safe Drinking Water for Private Well Users) 

F. Approve FY 2023 State of MN BWSR Soil Health Cost Share Grants   
Grant Agreement P23-2743 2023-Soil Health Cost Share (Wabasha SWCD) 
$14,175.00 – Board Action 
 

G. Upcoming Events: 
i. Fall MASWCD / MACDE Employee and Supervisors Meeting Tuesday Sept. 27th. 

Registration at 9:00 am at the Hokah Fire Station  
ii. BWSR Academy at Cragun’s Resort on Gull Lake Tues-Thurs. October 25th– 27th   

iii. MASWCD Annual Convention & Trade Show, Mon-Wed. Dec. 12 - 14th 

XII. Board Reports 
A. Whitewater JPB – Lynn 
B. Zumbro 1W1P – Larry (alternate Dag) 
C. WinLaC 1W1P - Lynn 
D. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB - Larry 
E. County Board Meeting – Larry (alternate Sharleen) 
F. Hiawatha Valley RC&D – Lynn 

 
XIII. Adjourn – Board Action                                                 











Please call office at 651-560-2053 or email susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com if you 
have any questions on attending physically or by phone. 
We have call-in capabilities for up to 10 people. Phone# 651-560-1088 Access code # 0147478#.  

 
Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District  

District Regular Board Meeting  
August 25, 2022 

8:15 a.m.  
County Conference Room 

625 Jefferson Ave. 
 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER  
Meeting called to order at 8:15 am by Lynn Zabel, Chair 
Supervisors Present: Sharleen Klennert, Treasurer, Larry Theismann, Secretary, 
Dag Knudsen, member and Lynn Zabel, Chair   
Staff Present: Terri Peters, District Manager 
Others Present: Bob Walkes, County Commissioner, John Benjamin, NRCS,  
Frank Klennert, Citizen 
On the Phone: Brian DeVetter, NRCS, Sheila Harmes, Winona County Water Planner,  
Sue Cerwinske, Bookkeeper/Administrative Assistant 
 

II. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

III. AGENDA 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Theismann to approve the agenda as presented.  
Affirmative:  Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

   
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS   

Comments limited to 5 minutes per speaker 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action 
A. FY2022 Regional Safe Drinking Water for Private Well Phase 2 User 

Sub-agreement between Wabasha SWCD and Rice SWCD 
B. Jeremy Nelson voucher payment in the amount of $1,160.00 for 327 Pollinator 

Habitat (5.8 acres @ $200.00/acre) 
C. FY2022 Regional Safe Drinking Water for Private Well Phase 2 User 

Sub-agreement between Wabasha SWCD and Goodhue SWCD 
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Klennert to approve the Consent Agenda   
Affirmative:  Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com


 
VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT 

A. July 28, 2022 Meeting Minutes – Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve the Secretary’s Report as 
read and reviewed earlier in the month 
Affirmative: Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
VII. TREASURER’S REPORT – Board Action  

A. District Financial Statements  
B. July Program Record 

Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Theismann to approve the Treasurer’s Report as 
read, 
Affirmative: Klennert, Theismann, Zabel 
Abstained: Knudsen 
Motion Carried 
 

VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS 
A. Monthly Bills in the amount of $27,982.91 - Board Action 

Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Theismann to approve the Payment of Monthly 
Bills in the amount of $27,982.91 
Affirmative:  Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
IX. DISTRICT REPORTS 

A. Chair Report – Lynn Zabel – report later on in meeting. 
B. County Commissioner – Bob Walkes  
Whitewater JPA Meeting – Nov. 
Approved application for Clean Water competitive grant 
Quote for Well Sealing 
Updated 319 Nitrogen Reduction Grant – focus on education 
Discussed WinLaC planning process 
Discussed local advisory team – to be headed by MDA 

  County – filling in pieces of the budget.  working on the day to day operations. 
 

C. District Manager Report – Terri Peters 
Reporting on Federal grants.  NFWF closed out 
319 reporting process for WinLaC chloride monitoring 
Interviews for Americorp position – Will Jacobson starts Aug. 29th for 11 months. 
Clean Water Fund Application Submitted 
WIC meeting with MPCA and Jen Wahls.  Discussed monitoring & how to move 
forward 
Gorman Creek out for bids soon.  Met with Pete Fryer/Engineer questions on doing the 
project. 
N.Fork Zumbro – DNR meeting, released some funds back – under budget by $200k 
Accelerated Implementation Phase 2 SWD – sub-agreements out 



WinLaC is in process of getting done.  Plans out for comment/technical committee 
Working on projects with staff on getting bids on projects.  Coming in 40 to 50% 
higher. Inflation Reduction Act.  Look at other contractors. 
Working through nominee applications for MASWCD awards.   
D. NRCS Report – John Benjamin - Gave report at the meeting 
E. District Technician Report- Matt Kempinger (in packet) 
F. Natural Resources Conservation Technician Report – Henry Stelten (in packet) 
G. Bookkeeper/Administrative Assistant -Sue Cerwinske (in packet) 

H. BWSR Report 
I. Other agencies –Sheila Harmes, Winona County Water Planner 
319 Grant follow up – final reports 
Connected with farmers in the cover crop program.  10 of the 12 are doing cover crops. 
One half of these are experimenting with multiple species and planting different times 
of the year. 
Submitted grant application for Well Sealing 
WinLaC under internal review until Sept. 12.  Compile comments, adjust draft plan as 
needed. 
Tour meeting for policy committee, October 3    Open up draft plan for 60-day review 
period.  Hearing early Jan on that plan. 

 
X. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Conservation Project – Lynn (open to any Supervisor for ideas) 
B. Wabasha Outstanding Conservationist of the Year.  Hoosier Ridge Ranch, Eric and 

Michelle Heins – Board Action 
Discussion: Terri reported on the conservation practices that Eric and Michelle have 
implemented on their farm and why she has nominated them.  If you want to visit the 
farm, let Terri know and she will set it up with Eric. 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Hoosier Ridge Ranch, Eric 
and Michelle Heins as Wabasha Outstanding Conservationist of the Year 
Affirmative: Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
Klennert brought up Charles Schmitt and because of COVID he was not recognized. At 
some point he should get public recognition.  Terri said that Sharleen could go out and 
visit Chuck and start to interview him.   

   
XI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Approval to use MAWQCP funds in our area for scholarship funds for producers that 
are pursuing MAWQCP certification to attend the U of M 2022 Soil Management 
Summit December 15-16 in St. Cloud.   Suggestion: Assessed or Certified full ride, 
$125.00 and 50% to those who apply and have not gone through the process $62.50 
- Board Action 
(Purpose is to help educate producers to implement soil health practices that will 
get them certified.) 
Terri noted that we will be reimbursed through this program. 



Motioned by Knudsen and seconded by Theismann to approve using MAWQCP promo 
funds in our area for scholarship funds for producers that are pursuing MAWQCP 
certification to attend the U of M 2022 Soil Management Summit December 15-16 in 
St. Cloud.  Suggestion: Assessed or Certified full rid, $125.00 and 50% to those who 
apply and have not gone through the process, $62.50. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
B. Approve Klavetter Family Farm Contract# 22-Capacity-2 in the amount of 

$12,835.96 for 410 Grade Stabilization Structure, 342 Critical Planting, 484 Mulching  
– Board Action/Signature 
(Funding sources FY22 Capacity $12,514.70, FY21 Capacity $321.26) 

  Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Klennert to approve Klavetter Familly Farm  
Contract# 22-Capacity-2 in the amount of $12,835.96 for 410 Grade Stabilization 
Structure, 342 Critical Planting and 484 Mulching. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
C. Conservationist/Awards program evaluation criteria – Board Discussion/Action 
Discussion:  Dag reported on how he came up with the criteria list.  It is a guide to 
follow.  Suggested to change program evaluation criteria as applicable.   
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Klennert to approve the awards program 
evaluation guide as applicable.  Choosing for County and write up for state. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
D. Letter of Support for Trout Unlimited RCPP – Board Action/Signature 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Theismann to approve the Letter of Support for 
Trout Unlimited RCPP. 
Affirmative:  Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed:  None 
Motion Carried 

 
E. West Indian Creek Targeted Outreach Letters – Board Signature 

i. Conservation Program Funding under the Mississippi River Basin Initiative – 
Informational on Outreach Effort 

Discussion: One letter for cover crops and one for non-structural practices.  All 
supervisors sign to make it personalized.  Cover crop letter going out first to targeted 
area.  Work on personalized information for each recipient.  
 
 
 

 



F. Approve Wildlife Habitat Steward Award and Forestry Steward Award nominee for 
MASWCD - Helen Myers – Board Approval/Signature 

Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Theismann to approve Helen Myers for 
Wildlife Habitat Steward Award and Forestry Steward Award nomination for 
MASWCD. 
Affirmative:  Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 
G. Teacher Award Nominee for MASWCD – Mike Besse – Board Approval/Signature 
Terri nominating Mike Besse for the Teacher Award for MASWCD.  Mike is a 5th grade 
teacher at Plainview/Elgin/Millville school.  He is active in their unit on conservation.  He 
uses our conservation cubes for 2 weeks. 1 week they work with DNR on invasive species.  
Students need to come up with an end report and create a poster. 
Mike has taken students to the Science Museum and on an overnight trip to the Eagle 
Valley Learning Center but ran out of money for that trip.  5th graders enjoy our Soil & 
Conservation Day. 
Motioned by Knudsen and seconded by Klennert to approve Mike Besse for the 
Teacher Award for MASWCD 
Affirmative: Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

  *Terri asked for a board member to be on each of the award application for MASWCD. 
    Sharleen volunteered sign for Eric Hein.  Dag for Helen Myers.   
 

H. MN BWSR Accepting Applications for Lawns to Legumes Grants 
Cost-Share funding available to Minnesota residents to create residential pollinator 
habitat- Informational 

I. Local Forestry Team/Local Forestry Outreach Program Efforts -DRAFT versions-do 
not sign. Potentially there will be some other small related grants. 
Delegate signature authority to Terri Peters to sign as they come in. – Board Action 

i. Minnesota State Chapter National Wild Turkey Federation Hunting Heritage 
Super Fund Application – Due September 1, 2022 

Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Theismann to approve Terri Peters to have 
signature authority to sign smaller grants as they come in. 
Affirmative: Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 

J. Approve Dan Johnson Voucher payment for Contract# 22-CS-1 in the amount of 
$4,825.00 for 410 Grade Stabilization and 342 Critical Area Planting – Board Action 
(Funds sources FY21 State Cost Share $1,537.50 and FY 22 State Cost Share 
$3,287.50) 



Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Knudsen to approve Dan Johnson voucher 
payment for Contract# 22-CS-1 in the amount of $4,825.00 for 410 Grade Stabilization 
and 342 Critical Area Planting 

Affirmative:  Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
K. Upcoming Events: 

i. Fall MASWCD / MACDE Employee and Supervisors Meeting Sept. 27th. 

Registration at 9:00 am at the Hokah Fire Station – RSVP by Sept. 15th 
ii. Americorp employee for Urban Forestry, Will Jacobson starts August 29th 

iii. January 28, 2023 Application Deadline for Lawns to Legumes program 
iv. SE Landscape Meeting 

 

XII. Board Reports 
A. Whitewater JPB – Lynn 
B. Zumbro 1W1P – Larry (alternate Dag) 
C. WinLaC 1W1P – Lynn – Listened in on meeting. 
D. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB – Larry – Meeting late Fall/early Winter 
E. County Board Meeting – Larry (alternate Sharleen)  No issues on report to County. 
F. Hiawatha Valley RC&D – Lynn – didn’t hear back from doodle poll on meeting date. 

 
 

XIII. Adjourn – Board Action        
Motioned by Knudsen and seconded by Klennert to adjourn the meeting at 9:49 am 
Affirmative:  Klennert, Theismann, Knudsen, Zabel 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried                         
 
 
 
     Respectively submitted by: 
 
     _____________________________ 
     Larry Theismann, Secretary                  



Aug 31, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Money Market- Bank of Alma 88,136.85
Money Market WNB Financial 7,402.08
Peoples State Bank Money Market 357,842.77
Petty Cash 83.90
WNB Financial 39,412.81

Total Checking/Savings 492,878.41

Total Current Assets 492,878.41

TOTAL ASSETS 492,878.41

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 0.00

11:38 AM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
09/06/22 Cash Balances
Cash Basis As of August 31, 2022

Page 1



Aug 31, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Money Market- Bank of Alma 88,136.85
Money Market WNB Financial 7,402.08
Peoples State Bank Money Market 357,842.77
Petty Cash 83.90
WNB Financial 39,412.81

Total Checking/Savings 492,878.41

Accounts Receivable
11000 · Accounts Receivable 8,988.11

Total Accounts Receivable 8,988.11

Other Current Assets
12000 · Undeposited Funds 200.00

Total Other Current Assets 200.00

Total Current Assets 502,066.52

Fixed Assets
15000 · Furniture and Equipment

Computer 8,706.00
Laptops for Distrcit Techs (2) 3,149.22
Samsung Tablets 1,548.69
15000 · Furniture and Equipment - Other 109,828.00

Total 15000 · Furniture and Equipment 123,231.91

17000 · Accumulated Depreciation -79,335.42

Total Fixed Assets 43,896.49

Other Assets
Prepaid Items

Prepaid Rent 920.43

Total Prepaid Items 920.43

Total Other Assets 920.43

TOTAL ASSETS 546,883.44

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

20000 · Accounts Payable -95.56

Total Accounts Payable -95.56

Other Current Liabilities
Allowance for Unemployment Reim 1,581.86
Deferred Revenue

AIS 76,315.06
FY18 Capacity 1,729.56
FY19 Capacity 4,279.45
FY20 Buffer Initiative 1,827.64
FY20 Capacity 2,019.74
FY20 CWMA 1,932.12
FY20 State Cost share 2,336.70
FY21 Buffer Initiative 15,163.00
FY21 Capacity 31,537.75
FY21 State Cost Share 8,705.80
FY22 Buffer Initiative 17,000.00
FY22 Capacity 73,525.66
FY22 State Cost Share 15,401.00

8:04 AM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
09/15/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2022

Page 1



Aug 31, 22

FY22 WCA -1,958.24
FY23 Conservation Delivery 19,619.00
FY23 LWM 14,177.00
FY23 State Cost Share 15,401.00
FY23 WCA 12,118.00

Total Deferred Revenue 311,130.24

Deposit on Tree Sales 35.00
24000 · Payroll Liabilities 1,192.99
25500 · Sales Tax Payable 568.40

Total Other Current Liabilities 314,508.49

Total Current Liabilities 314,412.93

Total Liabilities 314,412.93

Equity
Fund Balance- Restatement 47,943.10
Fund Balance Designated 31,903.30
Investment in Capital Assets 43,896.49
30000 · Opening Balance Equity 649.89
32000 · Owners Equity 162,483.44
Net Income -54,405.71

Total Equity 232,470.51

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 546,883.44

8:04 AM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
09/15/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of August 31, 2022

Page 2



Aug 22

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Charges for Services
Wetlands 200.00

Total Charges for Services 200.00

Intergovernmental Revenues
Federal

319 Focus Small Wtrshd-W.Indian 18,012.05

Total Federal 18,012.05

State
FY21 Regnl DW for Private Wells 1,665.50
FY22 MDA Noxious Weed Grant 660.93
Volunteer Nitrate Monitoring Ne 71.22

Total State 2,397.65

Total Intergovernmental Revenues 20,409.70

Total Income 20,609.70

Gross Profit 20,609.70

Expense
District Operations

Other Services and Charges
Advertising Expense 512.66
Building Rent 920.43
Employee Education and Training 570.75
Employee Mileage 56.25
Internet Expense 179.66
Professional Expenses 888.00

Subs. and Pubs. 160.96
Vehicle Expenses

Chevrolet Silverado Vehicle Exp 143.39
Hyundia Tucson Vehicle Expense 120.63

Total Vehicle Expenses 264.02

Total Other Services and Charges 3,552.73

Personnel Services
Employee Salary Permanent 16,749.05
Employer Life and Health

66000 · Payroll Expenses 6,249.93
Employer Life and Health - Other 22.00

Total Employer Life and Health 6,271.93

Employer Share FICA 1,106.23
Employer Share Medicare 258.71
Employer Share PERA 1,336.51

Worker's Comp Insurance -452.00

Total Personnel Services 25,270.43

Supplies
Field Supplies 67.86
Office Supplies 387.69

Total Supplies 455.55

Total District Operations 29,278.71

Project Expenditures
Federal

8:52 AM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
09/15/22 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis August 2022

Page 1



Aug 22

319 Focus Small Wtrshd-W.Indian 3,937.50

Total Federal 3,937.50

State
MAWQCP Administration 8,979.11
North Fork Zumbro-Mazeppa 310.00
State Cost Share Proj. Expense

FY21 State Cost Share 1,537.50
FY22 State Cost Share 4,447.50

Total State Cost Share Proj. Expense 5,985.00

Total State 15,274.11

Total Project Expenditures 19,211.61

Total Expense 48,490.32

Net Ordinary Income -27,880.62

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

Interest Income
Interest Earnings MM's 365.69

Total Interest Income 365.69

Total Other Income 365.69

Net Other Income 365.69

Net Income -27,514.93

8:52 AM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
09/15/22 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis August 2022

Page 2





NRCS Field Office Report 
9/22/22 

John Benjamin 
 

Current office standing 

• The office is open to producers. 
• Masks are currently not required in the building; this could change on a weekly basis dependent on 

CDC COVID community levels presented the Friday before. 

CSP (Conservation Stewardship Program) 

• 10 Active contracts 
• 10 Applications for CSP classic in pending status 
• 2 Applications for CSP23 renewal  
• CSP Grassland Conservation initiative (GCI) sign up deadline October 14th 2022 
• No applicants yet 

EQIP (Environmental Quality Incentive Program)  

• 27 Active EQIP contracts (totaling roughly $351,772in cost share remaining to be paid out) 
• 19 Applications in pending status 

RCPP-EQIP (Regional Conservation Partnership Program- EQIP) 

• 4 active contracts (totaling roughly $22,290 in cost share remaining to be paid out) 
• No applications submitted 

RCPP (Regional Conservation Partnership Program) 
Land Management fund through MAWQCP sign up is applicable in this county 

• 1 Active contract 
• No applications submitted 

CRP (Conservation Reserve Program)  

• 113 Expiring contract reviews for FY23 
• All reviews have been completed 
• 32 Continuous offers accepted (31 contracts signed currently) 
• 17 General offers accepted. (Contracts completed) 



Monthly Report – September 2022 
Matt Kempinger 
 
 
Projects  
 

• As-Built certification for 1 grassed waterway 
• Preliminary design work for 1 waterway  
• Preliminary design work for 3 grade stabilization structures 
• Preliminary project planning for 2 feedlot projects 
• Site investigation for 1 grade stabilization structure 
• Voucher processing for 1 grade stabilization structure 
• Prepare contract amendment for 1 grade stabilization structure project 
• Significant revision work on Gorman Creek stream restoration 
• Prepare material for Gorman Creek stream project bid package 
• Survey for Mazeppa stream restoration 

 
Others 
 

• Processing of 3 WCA joint application 
• Review of 2 1026 requests for WCA  
• Draft 1 WCA restoration order 
• Represent WCA during 1 proposed wetland bank site visits 
• Informed 1 landowner about MAWQCP program 
• Provided documentation to MAWQCP specialist for 3 projects 
• Answered general resource questions from public and assisted where possible 
• Began workflow for GIS processing on drone imagery 

 
 



Work Summary –September 2022 

Henry Stelten 

 

Projects 

• Cover crop contracting (x5 new) 
• Cover crop potential contracts planning (x2) 
• Cover crop seeding plans & communications for on-going contracts (x13) 
• Preliminary Grazing Plan planning (x1) 
• Communication & coordination for 410 grade stabilization structure (x2) 
• Site visits for potential 2023 brush management projects (x2)  
• Feedlot fix site visit (x1) 

 

Others 

• West Indian Creek non-structural outreach letter & EQIP rates mailer 
• Safe Drinking Water Grant cost-share contracting and outreach 
• 2022 Noxious Weed Grant treatment coordination and site/population scouting & mapping 
• Drone flight for Gorman Creek project surface survey 
• Roller-crimper storage space & assistance rental agreement drafting & updates 
• Potential CREP site eligibility investigation 
• Initial site visits for conservation planning 
• MAWQCP maps and producer info provided to MDA staff 

 

Training 

• Meeting for IDP & training needs 
• BWSR Academy registration 

 



Sue: 

Contractor’s list updated and public notice change sent to new website. 
Setup accounts for Nat’l Wildlife Turkey Federation and Jen Wahl’s for $2,500.00 
Board Minutes – recording, typed up and sent out to board for review 
Bank Reconciliations 
Deposits & Checks report for Terri’s program record 
August Financial Statements 
Filed copies of signed minutes for approved contracts/vouchers in producer’s file                       
September Agenda and Board packet – uploaded inf for meeting          

Normal Monthly Duties  

 

          

 
 





















































Page 1 of 4 

 
 

FY 2023 STATE OF MINNESOTA 
BOARD OF WATER and SOIL RESOURCES 

SOIL HEALTH COST SHARE GRANTS 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

 

Vendor: 0000205683 

PO#: 3000015361 
 

This Grant Agreement is between the State of Minnesota, acting through its Board of Water and Soil Resources (Board) 
and Wabasha SWCD, 611 Broadway Avenue, Suite 10 Wabasha  Minnesota 55981 (Grantee). 
  
 
 

This grant is for the following Grant Programs : 
P23-2743 2023 - Soil Health Cost Share (Wabasha SWCD)  $14,175 

Total Grant Awarded:  $14,175 
 

Recitals 
1. The Laws of Minnesota 2021, 1st Special Session, Chapter 6, Article 1, Section 4(k), appropriated funds to the Board for the 

FY 2023 Soil Health Cost Share Grants. 
2. The Board adopted the FY23 Soil Health Cost Share Grant Policy through Board Order #22-35. 
3. The Board adopted Board Order #22-35 to allocate funds for the FY 2023 Soil Health Cost Share Grants. 
4. The Grantee has submitted a Board approved work plan for this Program, which is incorporated into this Grant Agreement 

by reference. 
5. The Grantee represents that it is duly qualified and agrees to perform all services described in this Grant Agreement to the 

satisfaction of the Board. 
6. As a condition of the grant, Grantee agrees to minimize administration costs. 

 
Authorized Representative 

The State’s Authorized Representative is James Adkinson, Grants Coordinator, BWSR, 520 Lafayette Road North, Saint Paul, MN 
55155, 651-539-2588, or his successor, and has the responsibility to monitor the Grantee’s performance and the authority to accept 
the services and performance provided under this Grant Agreement. 
 
The Grantee’s Authorized Representative is:  TITLE – Terri Peters or District Manager 
      ADDRESS – 611 Broadway Manager 
      CITY – Wabasha 
      TELEPHONE NUMBER (651) 560-2044 
 
If the Grantee’s Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Grant Agreement, the Grantees must immediately notify 
the Board.  
 

Grant Agreement 
1. Terms of the Grant Agreement. 

1.1. Effective date: The date the Board obtains all required signatures under Minn. Stat. § 16B.98, Subd. 5. The Board will 
notify the Grantee when this Grant Agreement has been executed.  The Grantee must not begin work under this Grant 
Agreement until it is executed.   

1.2. Expiration date: December 31, 2024, or until all obligations have been satisfactorily fulfilled, whichever comes first.   
1.3. Survival of Terms: The following clauses survive the expiration date or cancellation of this Grant Agreement: 7. Liability; 8. 

State Audits; 9. Government Data Practices; 11. Publicity and Endorsement; 12. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue; 
14. Data Disclosure; and 19. Intellectual Property Rights. 
 



Page 2 of 4 

2. Grantee’s Duties. 
        The Grantee will comply with required grants management policies and procedures set forth through Minn. Stat §  
        16B.97,Subd.4(a)(1). The Grantee is responsible for the specific duties for the Program as follows: 

2.1. Implementation: The Grantee will implement their work plan, which is incorporated into this Grant Agreement by 
reference. 

2.2. Reporting: All data and information provided in a Grantee’s report shall be considered public. 
2.2.1. The Grantee will submit an annual progress report to the Board by February 1 of each year on the status of Program 

implementation by the Grantee. Information provided must conform to the requirements and formats set by the 
Board. All individual grants over $500,000 will also require a reporting expenditure by June 30 of each year. 

2.2.2. Final Progress Report: The Grantee will submit a final progress report to the Board by February 1, 2025 or within 30 
days of completion of the project, whichever occurs sooner.  Information provided must conform to the 
requirements and formats set by the Board. 

 
3. Time.  

The Grantee must comply with all the time requirements described in this Grant Agreement.  In the performance of this Grant 
Agreement, time is of the essence.  
 

4. Terms of Payment. 
4.1. All grant funds will be distributed in one installment promptly after the execution of the Grant Agreement.  
4.2. All costs must be incurred within the grant period and all incurred costs must be paid before the amount of unspent grant 

funds is determined.  
4.3. The obligation of the State under this Grant Agreement will not exceed the amount listed above. 
4.4. This grant is an advance payment. Advance payment allows the Grantee to have adequate operating capital for start-up 

costs, ensure their financial commitment to landowners and contractors, and to better schedule work into the future.      
 

5. Conditions of Payment. 
5.1. All services provided by the Grantee under this Grant Agreement must be performed to the Board’s satisfaction, as set 

forth in this Grant Agreement and in the Board approved work plan for this Program. Compliance will be determined at the 
sole discretion of the State’s Authorized Representative and in accordance with all applicable federal, State, and local laws, 
policies, ordinances, rules, FY23 Soil Health Cost Share Grant Policy, and regulations. The Grantee will not receive payment 
for work found by the Board to be unsatisfactory or performed in violation of federal, State or local law. 

5.2. Minnesota Statutes §103C.401 (2018) establishes the Board’s obligation to assure program compliance. If the 
noncompliance is severe, or if work under the Grant Agreement is found by the Board to be unsatisfactory or performed in 
violation of federal, State, or local law, the Board has the authority to require the repayment of grant funds or withhold 
payment on grants from other programs. 
 

6. Assignment, Amendments, and Waiver 
6.1. Assignment. The Grantee may neither assign nor transfer any rights or obligations under this Grant Agreement without the 

prior consent of the Board and a fully executed Assignment Agreement, executed and approved by the same parties who 
executed and approved this Grant Agreement, or their successors in office.   

6.2. Amendments. Any amendments to this Grant Agreement must be in writing and will not be effective until it has been 
approved and executed by the same parties who approved and executed the original Grant Agreement, or their successors 
in office. Amendments must be executed prior to the expiration of the original Grant Agreement or any amendments 
thereto. 

6.3. Waiver. If the Board fails to enforce any provision of this Grant Agreement, that failure does not waive the provision or its 
right to enforce it. 
 

7. Liability. 
The Grantee must indemnify, save, and hold the State, its agents, and employees harmless from any claims or causes of action, 
including attorney’s fees incurred by the State, arising from the performance of this Grant Agreement by the Grantee or the 
Grantee’s agents or employees. This clause will not be construed to bar any legal remedies the Grantee may have for the State’s 
failure to fulfill its obligations under this Grant Agreement. 
 

8. State Audits. 
Under Minn. Stat. § 16B.98, Subd. 8, the Grantee’s books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and practices of the 
Grantee or other party relevant to this Grant Agreement or transaction are subject to examination by the Board and/or the 
State Auditor or Legislative Auditor, as appropriate, for a minimum of six years from the end of this Grant Agreement, receipt 



Page 3 of 4 

and approval of all final reports, or the required period of time to satisfy all State and program retention requirements, 
whichever is later. 
8.1. The books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices of the Grantee and its designated local units of 

government and contractors relevant to this grant, may be examined at any time by the Board or Board’s designee and are 
subject to verification. The Grantee or delegated local unit of government will maintain records relating to the receipt and 
expenditure of grant funds.  

  
9. Government Data Practices. 

The Grantee and State must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, as it applies to all 
data provided by the State under this Grant Agreement, and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, 
maintained, or disseminated by the Grantee under this Grant Agreement. The civil remedies of Minn. Stat. § 13.08 apply to the 
release of the data referred to in this clause by either the Grantee or the State. 
 

10. Workers’ Compensation. 
The Grantee certifies that it is in compliance with Minn. Stat. § 176.181, Subd. 2, pertaining to workers’ compensation insurance 
coverage. The Grantee’s employees and agents will not be considered State employees. Any claims that may arise under the 
Minnesota Workers’ Compensation Act on behalf of these employees and any claims made by any third party as a consequence 
of any act or omission on the part of these employees are in no way the State’s obligation or responsibility. 
 

11. Publicity and Endorsement. 
11.1. Publicity. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Grant Agreement must identify the Board as the sponsoring 

agency. For purposes of this provision, publicity includes notices, informational pamphlets, press releases, research, 
reports, signs, and similar public notices prepared by or for the Grantee individually or jointly with others, or any 
subcontractors, with respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Grant Agreement. 

11.2. Endorsement. The Grantee must not claim that the State endorses its products or services 
 

12. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue. 
Minnesota law, without regard to its choice-of-law provisions, governs this Grant Agreement. Venue for all legal proceedings 
out of this Grant Agreement, or its breach, must be in the appropriate State or federal court with competent jurisdiction in 
Ramsey County, Minnesota. 
 

13. Termination. 
13.1. The Board may cancel this Grant Agreement at any time, with or without cause, upon 30 days’ written notice to the 

Grantee. Upon termination, the Grantee will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for services 
satisfactorily performed. 

13.2. The Board may immediately terminate this Grant Agreement if the Board finds that there has been a failure to comply with 
the provisions of this Grant Agreement, that reasonable progress has not been made or that the purposes for which the 
funds were granted have not been or will not be fulfilled. The Board may take action to protect the interests of the State of 
Minnesota, including the refusal to disburse additional funds and requiring the return of all or part of the funds already 
disbursed. 
 

14. Data Disclosure. 
Under Minn. Stat. § 270C.65, Subd. 3, and other applicable law, the Grantee consents to disclosure of its social security number, 
federal employer tax identification number, and/or Minnesota tax identification number, already provided to the State, to 
federal and State tax agencies and State personnel involved in the payment of State obligations. These identification numbers 
may be used in the enforcement of federal and State tax laws which could result in action requiring the Grantee to file State tax 
returns and pay delinquent State tax liabilities, if any. 
 

15. Prevailing Wage. 
It is the responsibility of the Grantee or contractor to pay prevailing wage for projects that include construction work of $25,000 
or more, prevailing wage rules apply per Minn. Stat. §§ 177.41 through 177.44. All laborers and mechanics employed by grant 
recipients and subcontractors funded in whole or in part with these State funds shall be paid wages at a rate not less than those 
prevailing on projects of a character similar in the locality. Bid requests must state the project is subject to prevailing wage.  
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 

16. Municipal Contracting Law. 
Per Minn. Stat. § 471.345, grantees that are municipalities as defined in Subd. 1 of this statute must follow the Uniform 
Municipal Contracting Law. Supporting documentation of the bidding process utilized to contract services must be included in 
the Grantee’s financial records, including support documentation justifying a single/sole source bid, if applicable. 

 
17. Intellectual Property Rights. 

The State owns all rights, title, and interest in all of the intellectual property rights, including copyrights, patents, trade secrets, 
trademarks, and service marks in the Works and Documents created and paid for under this grant. Works means all inventions, 
improvements, discoveries, (whether or not patentable), databases, computer programs, reports, notes, studies, photographs, 
negatives, designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, and disks conceived, reduced to practice, created or originated by 
the Grantee, its employees, agents, and subcontractors, either individually or jointly with others in the performance of this 
grant. Work includes “Documents.” Documents are the originals of any databases, computer programs, reports, notes, studies, 
photographs, negatives, designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, disks, or other materials, whether in tangible or 
electronic forms, prepared by the Grantee, its employees, agents or subcontractors, in the performance of this grant. The 
Documents will be the exclusive property of the State and all such Documents must be immediately returned to the State by the 
Grantee upon completion or cancellation of this grant at the State’s request. To the extent possible, those Works eligible for 
copyright protection under the United State Copyright Act will be deemed to be “works made for hire.” The Grantee assigns all 
right, title, and interest it may have in the Works and the Documents to the State. The Grantee must, at the request of the State, 
execute all papers and perform all other acts necessary to transfer or record the State’s ownership interest in the Works and 
Documents. 

 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Grant Agreement to be duly executed intending to be bound thereby. 
 
 
Approved: 
 

Wabasha SWCD       Board of Water and Soil Resources 
 
   
By:     _______________________________________ By:    ____________________________________________   
    (print) 
         
           _______________________________________    
                               (signature)  
 
Title: _______________________________________               Title:  ____________________________________________      
 
 
Date: _______________________________________ Date: ____________________________________________  
 


	2023 Soil Health Cost Share Grant - Wabasha SWCD_2022-09-21_03-03-37-PM.pdf
	4.4. This grant is an advance payment. Advance payment allows the Grantee to have adequate operating capital for start-up costs, ensure their financial commitment to landowners and contractors, and to better schedule work into the future.




